


 
 

 
AGENDA\COMMISSION\2‐3‐2020 

BURBANK-GLENDALE-PASADENA AIRPORT AUTHORITY 

Regular Meeting of Monday, February 3, 2020 

9:00 A.M. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

The public comment period is the opportunity for members of the public to address the 
Commission on agenda items and on airport-related non-agenda matters that are within 
the Commission’s subject matter jurisdiction.  At the discretion of the presiding officer, 
public comment on an agenda item may be presented when that item is reached.   
 

 
 
Members of the public are requested to observe the following decorum when attending or 
participating in meetings of the Commission: 
 

 Turn off cellular telephones and pagers. 
 Refrain from disorderly or boisterous conduct, including loud, threatening, 

profane, or abusive language, clapping, whistling, stamping, or other acts that 
disrupt or otherwise render unfeasible the orderly conduct of the meeting. 

 If you desire to address the Commission during the public comment period, fill 
out a speaker request card and present it to the Board Secretary. 

 Confine remarks to agenda items or to airport-related non-agenda matters that 
are within the Commission’s subject matter jurisdiction. 

 Limit comments to five minutes or to such other period of time as may be 
specified by the presiding officer. 

 
 

 
The following activities are prohibited: 
 

 Allocation of speaker time to another person. 
 Video presentations requiring use of Authority equipment. 

 
 

 
Any disclosable public records related to an open session item on a regular meeting 
agenda and distributed by the Authority to the Commission less than 72 hours prior to 
that meeting are available for public inspection at Hollywood Burbank Airport (2627 N. 
Hollywood Way, Burbank) in the administrative office during normal business hours. 
 

 
 

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, if you require a 
disability-related modification or accommodation to attend or participate in this meeting, 
including auxiliary aids or services, please call the Board Secretary at (818) 840-8840 at 
least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 



 

AGENDA\COMMISSION\2‐3‐2020 

 

A G E N D A 
 

Monday, February 3, 2020 
 

1. ROLL CALL 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

5. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

a. Committee Minutes 
(For Note and File) 
 
1)    Operations and Development Committee [See page 1] 
 
       (i)  December 16, 2019 
 
2)    Finance and Administration Committee [See page 4] 
 
       (i)  December 16, 2019 
 
3)    Legal, Government and Environmental Affairs Committee [See page 6] 
 
        (i)  December 10, 2019  
 

b. Commission Minutes    
(For Approval) 
 
1)  January 21, 2020 [See page 8] 
 

c. Treasurer’s Reports       
 
1)  November 2019 [See page 13] 
 
2)  October 2019 [See page 36] 
 

d. Resolution No. 485 Adopting the 2020 Authority [See page 59] 
      Investment Policy 
 
e. First Amendment to Professional Services Agreement [See page 66] 

Performance Term Extension – Garver, LLC 
 

f. Request to Support Pledge Against Human Trafficking  [See page 69] 
 
 
 
 



 

AGENDA\COMMISSION\2‐3‐2020 

 

 
 

6. ITEMS FOR COMMISSION APPROVAL 

a. Approval of Amendment No. 2 to SITA    [See page 71] 
Airport Solution Line Service Agreement for Gate  
Management System 
 

b. Award of Contract for Landside Paving Rehabilitation   [See page 73] 
Project Number E19-14 
 

c. Right of Entry and Access Agreement [See page 78]    
with Burbank Industrial Investors, LP 
 

7. ITEMS FOR COMMISSION INFORMATION 
 

a. December 2019 Parking Revenue Statistics [No staff report] 
 
b. December 2019 Transportation Network Companies   [No staff report] 

 
c. December 2019 Passenger/Cargo and  [See page 89] 

Regional Airport Passenger Statistics 
 

d. 2019 Annual Community Fundraiser Drive Results [No Staff Report]  
 

8. CLOSED SESSION 
 
a.   CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS 
      (California Government Code Section 54957.6) 
      Authority Representatives:  Frank Miller, Executive Director 
                                                  Ed Skvarna, Chief of Police/Director of 
                                                  Public Safety 
      Employee Organization:     Burbank Airport Police Officers Association 
 

9. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 
(Other updates and information items, if any) 
 

10. ADJOURNMENT 



COMMISSION\NEWSLETTER\2‐3‐2020 

COMMISSION NEWSLETTER 
 

Monday, February 3, 2020 

 [Regarding agenda items] 
 

5. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

(Consent Calendar items may be enacted by one motion.  There will be no 
separate discussion on these items unless a Commissioner so requests, in 
which event the item will be removed from the Consent Calendar and 
considered in its normal sequence on the agenda.) 
 

a. COMMITTEE MINUTES.  Approved minutes of the Operations and Development 
Committee meeting of December 16, 2019; approved minutes of the Finance and 
Development Committee meeting of December 16, 2019; and approved minutes of 
the Legal, Government and Environmental Affairs Committee special meeting of 
December 10, 2019, are included in the agenda packet for information purposes. 
 

b. COMMISSION MINUTES.  Draft minutes of the January 21, 2020, Commission 
special meeting are attached for the Commission’s review and approval.   
 

c. TREASURER’S REPORTS.  The Treasurer’s Reports for November 2019 and 
October 2019 are included in the agenda packet.  At the January 21, 2020, special 
meeting of the Finance and Administration Committee (“Committee”), the Committee 
voted unanimously (3–0) to recommend that the Commission note and file these 
reports. 
 

d. RESOLUTION NO. 485 ADOPTING THE 2020 AUTHORITY INVESTMENT 
POLICY.  A staff report is included in the agenda packet.  At its January 21, 2020, 
special meeting of the Finance and Administration Committee (“Committee”), the 
Committee voted unanimously (3–0) to recommend the Commission adopt proposed 
Resolution No. 485 approving the 2020 Authority Investment Policy. 
 
Formerly mandated by State law and now currently recommended under Sections 
53646(a)(2) and 53646(h) of the California Government Code (“Code”), the 
Commission annually reviews and approves an investment policy to identify policies 
and procedures for the prudent and systematic investment to be followed by the 
Authority Treasurer in the exercise of the investment authority delegated to him/her.   

The Authority’s Investment Manager, Columbia Management Investment Advisors 
LLC (“CMIA”), has opined that the 2019 Authority Investment Policy, with overall 
investment criteria of capital preservation (safety) and liquidity, is still appropriate and 
conservative, and does not need revisions at this time.  Staff concurs with the CMIA 
recommendation. 

e. FIRST AMENDMENT TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT-
PERFORMANCE TERM EXTENSION – GARVER, LLC.  A staff report is included in 
the agenda packet. Staff seeks to extend Garver, LLC Professional Services 
Agreement for an additional six months to June 30, 2020.  Staff seeks the additional 
time to complete the implementation of the Safety Management System. 
 



– 2 – 
COMMISSION\NEWSLETTER\2‐3‐2020 
 
 

f. REQUEST TO SUPPORT PLEDGE AGAINST HUMAN TRAFFICKING.  A staff 
report is included in the agenda packet.  The Federal Aviation Administration, on 
behalf of the U.S. Department of Transportation, is seeking support to execute a 
voluntary pledge against human trafficking. 
 

6. ITEMS FOR COMMISSION APPROVAL 
 
a. APPROVAL OF AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO SITA AIRPORT SOLUTION LINE 

SERVICE AGREEMENT FOR GATE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM.  A staff report is 
included in the agenda packet.  At its January 21, 2020, special meeting of the 
Operations and Development Committee (“Committee”), the Committee voted 
unanimously (3–0) to recommend that the Commission approve proposed 
Amendment No. 2 to SITA (or Société International de Telecommunications 
Aėronautiques) Airport Solution Line Service Agreement in a not-to-exceed amount 
of $469,677 for a Gate Management System.   
 

b. AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR LANDSIDE PAVING REHABILITATION PROJECT 
NUMBER E19-14.  A staff report is included in the agenda packet.  At its January 21, 
2020, special meeting of the Operations and Development Committee (“Committee”), 
the Committee voted unanimously (3–0) to recommend that the Commission:  (1)  
Award a contract for Landside Paving Rehabilitation in the amount of $141,417 to 
PaveWest Inc.; (2) Authorize a project budget for construction management, admini-
stration and quality assurance services for a not-to-exceed amount of $15,000; and 
(3) Authorize a project aggregate contingency of $15,000 for unforeseen 
circumstances that may arise during construction. 
 

c. RIGHT OF ENTRY AND ACCESS AGREEMENT WITH BURBANK INDUSTRIAL 
INVESTORS, LP.  A staff report is included in the agenda packet.  At its January 21, 
2020, special meeting of the Legal, Government and Environmental Affairs 
Committee (“Committee”), the Committee voted unanimously (3–0) to recommend 
that the Commission approve a proposed Right of Entry and Access Agreement with 
Burbank Industrial Investors, LP., to facilitate limited grading and drainage work on 
the Adjacent Property to protect the Avion Burbank site. 
 

7. ITEMS FOR COMMISSION INFORMATION  
 

a. DECEMBER 2019 PARKING REVENUE STATISTICS.  No staff report attached.  
Staff will present parking revenue data for the month of December 2019. 
 

b. DECEMBER 2019 TRANSPORTATION NETWORK COMPANIES.  No staff report 
attached.  Staff will update the Commission on TNC activity for the month of  
December 2019.  
 

c. DECEMBER 2019 PASSENGER/CARGO AND REGIONAL AIRPORT 
PASSENGER STATISTICS.  A staff report is included in the agenda packet.  The 
December 2019 passenger count of 554,520 was up 19.21% compared to last year’s 
465,154 passengers.  Air carrier aircraft operations increased 9.57%, while cargo 
volume December was up at 9.5 million pounds.   
 



– 3 – 
COMMISSION\NEWSLETTER\2‐3‐2020 
 
 

d. 2019 ANNUAL COMMUNITY FUNDRAISER DRIVE RESULTS.  No staff report 
attached.  Staff will update the Commission on the results of the 2019 Community 
Fundraiser Drive. 
 

 
 



 
 
 

        MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
OPERATIONS AND DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 

BURBANK-GLENDALE-PASADENA AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
 

         MONDAY, DECEMBER 16, 2019 
 

A regular meeting of the Operations and Development Committee was called to order on this  
date in the Airport Skyroom, 2627 N. Hollywood Way, Burbank, California, at 8:30 a.m., by 
Commissioner Tornek. 
 

MINUTES\OPERATIONS\12-16-19 

 

 
ROLL CALL   

Present: Commissioners Tornek, Devine and Brown   

Absent:  None 

Also Present: Staff:  Frank Miller, Executive Director;  
John Hatanaka, Senior Deputy Executive Director; 
Anthony Defrenza, Director of Engineering and 
Maintenance; Ed Skavarna, Chief of Police; 
Director, Public safety; Tom Lenahan, Fire Chief 

1.  Approval of Agenda There were no adjustments to the agenda. 

2.  Public Comment There were no public speakers. 

3.  Approval of the Minutes 
 
     a.  October 21, 2019 

 

Commissioner Devine moved approval of the  
minutes of the October 21, 2019 meeting seconded 
by Commissioner Brown. The minutes were 
unanimously approved (3-0).  

    4.  Contracts and Leases 
 

    a.  Award of Professional 
Services Agreement for 
Airside Paving Rehabilitation 
Project Design and 
Construction Administration; 
In-House Design Management 

         Services Budget Approval 
 

 

 

     

 
 
Staff presented to the Committee a recommendation 
for Commission approval of an Award for a 
Professional Services Agreement for design and 
construction administration services in the amount  
of $369,535 to RDM International, Inc.; approval of  
a project budget for in-house design management 
services for a not-to-exceed amount of $37,000;  
and approval of a project aggregate contingency of 
$60,000 to address changes in the scope of design 
and engineering services resulting from information 
obtained as part of the initial design development. 
 
 
 
 

5.a.1)(i)
Approved January 21, 2020

1



 
 

-2- 
MINUTES\OPERATIONS\12-16-19 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

          Motion 
 
 

          Motion Approved 
 

         b.    Award of Purchase Order -
Airport Police Department 
Portable Radio Replacement 

     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

          Motion 
 
 
 

          Motion Approved 
 

The proposed project includes four distinct areas of 
work, Taxiway D7 Connector, Taxiway G Infield, 
Taxilane A, and the Delta Ramp Rehabilitation and 
Expansion.  
 
The adopted FY 2019-2020 Facility Development 
budget includes $489,000 for planning, engineering 
and design services and design management 
associated with the projects.  The design phase of 
the project will commence after the award and 
execution of the Professional Services Agreement. 
 
Construction plans and specifications for bid are 
anticipated to be completed in the second quarter  
of 2020. 
 
Commissioner Brown moved approval of Staff’s 
recommendation, seconded by Commissioner 
Devine.  

The motion was approved unanimously (3-0). 

The Airport Police Chief Skvarna presented to the 
Committee a recommendation for Commission 
approval that it authorize the issuance of a 
purchase order to Motorola Solutions to replace the 
Airport Authority Police Department’s (“APD”) 
Motorola XTS5000 portable radios with 55 Motorola 
APX8000 series radios with ancillary accessories in 
the amount of $367,979. 
 
Chief Skvarna reported that the APD officers 
currently share 42 Motorola XTS5000 portable 
radios which were originally acquired twelve years 
ago in 2007.  These radios have outlived their 
useful life and will no longer be supported by 
Motorola for system upgrades or maintenance.  
 
Funding for the acquisition of replacement portable 
radios for APD is included in the adopted FY 2020 
budget which may be eligible for reimbursement 
through a future Passenger Facility Charge 
Application. 
 
Commissioner Brown moved approval of Staff’s 
recommendation, seconded by Commissioner 
Devine.  

The motion was approved unanimously (3-0). 
 

2



 
 

-3- 
MINUTES\OPERATIONS\12-16-19 
 

 

         c.    Fire Service Cooperative 
Agreement 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

          Motion 
 

          Motion Approved 
 

   5.  Items for Information 

      a.  Committee Pending Items  

6.  Adjournment                                         

 
 
 

The Airport Fire Chief Lenahan presented to the 
Committee a recommendation for Commission 
approval that it authorize the Director of Public 
Safety/Chief of Police to be authorized to execute a 
proposed Fire Service Cooperative Agreement with 
the City of Burbank.    
 
Since 1988 the Authority and the City have 
implemented a mutual aid contract to facilitate 
cooperation between the Airport Fire Department 
(“AFD”) and the Burbank Fire Department (“BFD”).  
The existing mutual aid contract was executed on 
June 17, 1996.  The BFD and the AFD share fire 
service jurisdiction at the Airport and wish to update 
the current mutual aid contract.  
 
Fire Chief Lenahan advised that the implementation 
of the proposed agreement is not expected to have 
any noticeable impact on how the AFD provides 
safety and security for the traveling public, nor will 
the Agreement measurably impact how the two 
agencies interact with each other. Execution of the 
Agreement will not have any impact on Authority 
revenues. 
 
Commissioner Brown moved approval of Staff’s 
recommendation, seconded by Commissioner 
Devine.  

The motion was approved unanimously (3-0). 
 
 
 
Staff informed the Committee of future pending 
items that will come to the Committee for review. 

There being no further business, the meeting 
adjourned at 8:45 a.m. 

33



 
 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 

BURBANK-GLENDALE-PASADENA AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
 

MONDAY, DECEMBER 16, 2019 
 

 
MINUTES\FINANCE\12-16-19 

 

A regular meeting of the Finance and Administration Committee was called to order this date in 
the Airport Skyroom, 2627 N. Hollywood Way, Burbank, California, at 10:53 a.m., by 
Commissioner Gharpetian. 
 
AB 23 Disclosure:  The Senior Deputy Executive Director announced that, as a result of the 
convening of this meeting of the Finance and Administration Committee, each Committee 
member is entitled to receive and shall be provided $200. 

ROLL CALL   
Present: Commissioners Gharpetian, Selvidge  

 
Absent: Commissioner Adams 

 
Also Present: Staff:  John Hatanaka, Senior Deputy Executive 

Director; Kathy David, Deputy Executive Director, 
Finance and Administration;  
 
Columbia Investment Management: 
James A. Wilkinson, Director, Institutional 
Relationship Management; and Ronald B. Stahl, 
CFA, Senior Portfolio Manager (both via 
teleconference) 
 

1. Approval of Agenda Agenda was approved as presented. 
 

2. Public Comment There were no public comments. 
 

3. Approval of Minutes 
 
a. October 21, 2019 

 
 
Draft minutes for the October 21, 2019,  
Finance and Administration Committee meeting 
were presented for approval. 
 

           Motion 
 

Commissioner Selvidge moved approval of the 
minutes, seconded by Commissioner Gharpetian. 
 

           Motion Approved There being no objection, the minutes were 
approved (2–0, 1 absent). 
 

NOTE:  Item 5 was taken out of order. 
 
 
 

5.a.2)(i)
Approved January 21, 2020

4



- 2 – 
 

MINUTES\FINANCE\12-16-19 

 

5.  Items for Discussion 
 
     a.   CMIA Quarterly Investment 
           Portfolio Review 

 
 
Staff introduced James Wilkinson and Ron Stahl, of 
Columbia Investment Management, the Authority’s 
investment advisors.  Mr. Wilkinson and Mr. Stahl 
presented an update on the status of the 
Authority’s Operating and Passenger Facility 
Charge Quarterly Investment Portfolio for the 
quarter ended September 30, 2019. 
 

4.  Treasurer’s Report 
 
      a.  September 2019 
 
 

 
 
A copy of the September 2019 Treasurer’s Report 
was included in the agenda packet for the 
Committee’s review. 
 

           Motion 
 

Commissioner Selvidge moved approval of the 
minutes, seconded by Commissioner Gharpetian. 
 

           Motion Approved There being no objection, the minutes were 
approved (2–0, 1 absent). 
 

6. Items for Information 
 
a.  Quarterly Purchase Order and 
     Minor Lease Update 
 
 
b.  Committee Pending Items 

 
 
Staff updated the Committee on three items 
covering through the quarter ended September 30, 
2019. 
 
 
Staff informed the Committee of future pending 
items that will come to the Committee for review. 
 

7.  Other Contracts and Leases There were no other contracts and leases to be 
discussed. 
 

8.  Adjournment There being no further business to discuss, the 
meeting was adjourned at 11:19 a.m. 

 

  

5



 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE 
LEGAL, GOVERNMENT AND ENVIRONMENTAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 

BURBANK-GLENDALE-PASADENA AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
 

TUESDAY, DECEMBER 10, 2019 
 
A special meeting of the Legal, Government and Environmental Affairs Committee was called to 
order on this date in the Burbank Room, 2627 N. Hollywood Way, Burbank, California, at 9:08 a.m., 
by Chairman Wiggins. 

 

ROLL CALL 
Present: Commissioners Wiggins, Madison and Agajanian 

Absent: None 

Also Present: Staff: Frank Miller, Executive Director; 
John Hatanaka, Senior Deputy Executive Director; 
Sarah Paulson Sheehy, Senior Director of 
Government and Public Affairs 

 
Airport Authority Counsel: Terence R. Boga of 
Richards, Watson and Gershon 

 

1.  Approval of Agenda 
 

The agenda was approved as presented. 

 

2.  Public Comment 
 

There were no public speakers. 

3.  Approval of Minutes 

a.  November 4, 2019 

 
 
 

Commissioner Wiggins moved approval of the 
minutes of the November 4, 2019 meeting. The 
minutes were approved (3-0). 

 

4. Items for Information 
 

a.  Consideration of TBI Airport 
Management Contract Extension 
Request 

 
 
 

Authority General Counsel, Terence Boga, 
presented a report and a proposed draft letter 
of intent for Committee consideration and 
recommendation of the following: (i) a request from 
TBI Airport Management, Inc. (“TBI”) for a 10-year 
extension of the airport management services 
agreement (“Management Contract”); and (ii) any 
desirable changes to the Management Contract. 

 
The letter will be a consent calendar item with the 
Legal Committees recommendation that the 
Commission authorize the letter to be sent to TBI 
and General Counsel to authorize the Legal 
Committee to negotiate the Management Contract 
and any other issues with TBI. 

 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES\LEGAL\12-10-19 

 

 

5.a.3)(i)
Approved January 21, 2020

6



Motion 
 

 
Motion Approved 

 
5. Items for Information 

 
a. Committee Pending Items 

 

 
 

6. Adjournment 

Commissioner Wiggins moved the Committee 
recommendation. 
 
The motion was approved (3-0). 
 
 
 
 
Staff informed the Committee of future pending 
items that will come to the Committee for review. 
 
There being no further business, the meeting was 
adjourned at 9:59 a.m. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES\LEGAL\12-10-19 
-2- 

 

 
 

 7



 
 
 

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE 
BURBANK-GLENDALE-PASADENA AIRPORT AUTHORITY 

 
MONDAY, JANUARY 21, 2020 

 
 

 
COMMISSION/MINUTES/1-21-2020 

A special meeting of the Burbank-Glendale-Pasadena Airport Authority was called to order 
this date in the Airport Skyroom, 2627 N. Hollywood Way, Burbank, California, at 9:01 a.m., 
by President Adams. 
 

1. ROLL CALL 
 

 

Present: Commissioners Brown, Agajanian (arr. 9:18 
a.m.), Gharpetian, Tornek, Adams, Devine, 
Madison (arr. 9:04 a.m.), Wiggins and Selvidge 

Absent: None 

Also Present: Staff:  Frank Miller, Executive Director; 
John Hatanaka, Senior Deputy Executive 
Director; Anthony DeFrenza, Director, 
Engineering; Thomas Henderson, Director, 
Operations; Tom Janowitz, Sr. Manager, 
Ground Access; Nerissa Sugars, Director, 
Marketing, Communications and Air Service 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE President Adams led the assembly in the 
recitation of the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA The agenda was approved as presented. 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT Mike Nolan, Burbank resident.  The Commission 
noted that these public comments largely spoke 
to Item 7.a.

5. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

 

a. Committee Minutes 
(For Note and File) 
 
 1)   Operations and  

    Development 
    Committee 
 
    (i)   October 21, 2019 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved minutes of the Operations and 
Development Committee meeting for October 
21, 2019, were included in the agenda packet 
for information purposes. 
 
 

5.b.1)
Subject to approval

8



– 2 – 
COMMISSION/MINUTES/1-21-2020 

2)   Finance and 
   Administration 
   Committee 

  
      (i)   October 21, 2019 

 
 
 
 

3)   Legal, Government and
   Environmental Affairs 
   Committee 

  
      (i)   November 4, 2019 

 
 

 
 
 
 
Approved minutes of the Finance and 
Administration Committee meeting for October 
21, 2019, were included in the agenda packet 
for information purposes. 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved minutes of the Legal, Government 
and Environmental Affairs Committee special  
meeting for November 4, 2019, were included in 
the agenda packet for information purposes. 

b. Commission Minutes 
(For Approval) 
 
1)  December 16, 2019 
 

 
 
 
Minutes of the December 16, 2019, Commission 
meeting were included in the agenda packet for 
review and approval. 

c. Treasurer’s Report 
 
1)  September 2019 
 
 
 
 

 
 
At the December 16, 2019, Finance and 
Administration Committee meeting, the 
Committee reviewed the September 2019 
Treasurer’s Report and voted unanimously  
(3–0) to accept the Treasurer’s Report and 
recommend that the Commission note and file 
the report. 

MOTION Commissioner Madison moved approval of the 
Consent Calendar; seconded by Commissioner 
Devine. 

MOTION APPROVED There being no objection, the motion was 
approved (8-0, 1 absent). 

 AYES:     Commissioners Brown, Adams,  
                Gharpetian, Tornek, Devine, 
                Madison, Wiggins and Selvidge 
 
NOES:     NONE 
 
ABSENT: Commissioner Agajanian 
 
 

9



– 3 – 
COMMISSION/MINUTES/1-21-2020 

6. ITEMS FOR COMMISSION 
APPROVAL 
 
a.  Fire Service Cooperative 
     Agreement 
 
 

 
 
 
At the December 16, 2019, meeting of the 
Operations and Development Committee, the 
Committee voted unanimously (3–0) to 
recommend the Commission authorize the 
Director of Public Safety/Chief of Police to 
execute a proposed Fire Service Cooperative 
Agreement (“Agreement”) with the City of 
Burbank. 
 
Staff presented to the Commission the proposed 
Agreement with the City of Burbank which 
codifies and reflects a mutual aid contract to 
facilitate cooperation between the Airport Fire 
Department (“AFD”) and the Burbank Fire 
Department.  The purpose of this proposed 
Agreement is to reflect current practices as well 
as set forth guidelines and responsibilities of 
both parties. 
 
The Agreement is not expected to have any 
noticeable impact on how the AFD provides 
safety and security for the traveling public. 

MOTION Commissioner Wiggins moved; seconded by 
Commissioner Gharpetian. 

MOTION APPROVED There being no objection, the motion was 
approved (8-0, 1 absent). 
 
AYES:     Commissioners Brown, Adams,  
                Gharpetian, Tornek, Devine 
                Madison, Wiggins and Selvidge 
                 
NOES:     NONE 
 
ABSENT: Commissioner Agajanian 

7. ITEMS FOR COMMISSION 
DISCUSSION 
 
a.  Community Noise  
     Concerns 

 
 
 
Staff updated the Commission on status of 
activities of the Joint Task Force established by 
Hollywood Burbank Airport and Los Angeles 
World Airports to work with the Federal Aviation 
Administration in addressing community noise 
concerns. 

10



– 4 – 
COMMISSION/MINUTES/1-21-2020 

The next meeting has been scheduled for 
February 19, at 6:30 p.m. at the same location. 

8. ITEMS FOR COMMISSION 
INFORMATION 
 

 

a.  FAA Part 139 Inspection 
     Report 

Staff presented to the Commission the Part 139 
Inspection Report conducted by the FAA.  The 
Part 139 regulations address training, inspection 
documentation, record keeping, and the facility 
requirements of the airfield.  The inspection 
occurred from November 19 - 21, 2019. 
 
The inspector noted three items which required 
corrective action:  submission of a new draft 
Airport Certification Manual; repainting of lead-in 
lines on Runway 8/26; and replacing a missing 
current state inspection sticker on a fire 
extinguisher on a mobile fuel truck.  All items 
were immediately corrected. 

b.  November 2019 Parking 
     Revenue Statistics 

Staff presented an update on the November 
2019 parking revenue. 
 

c.  November 2019 
     Transportation Network  
     Companies 

Staff presented an update on the November 
2019 Transportation Network Companies 
activities. 

      d.  November 2019 Passenger 
  and Regional Airport  
  Passenger Statistics 

Staff presented an update on the November 
2019 Passenger and Regional Airport 
Passenger Statistics. 

9. CLOSED SESSION The meeting recessed to close session at  
9:36 a.m. 

a. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 
Significant Exposure to Litigation (California Government Code Section  
54956.9(d)(2)):  1 potential case.  Facts and Circumstances:  FAA Southern 
California Metroplex Project 
 

b. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR 
            (California Government Code Section 54957.6) 

Authority Representatives:  Frank Miller, Executive Director 
                                            Ed Skvarna, Chief of Police/Director 
                                            Public Safety 
Employee Organization:      Burbank Airport Police Officers Association 
 

c. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 
            (California Government Code Section 54957(b)) 
            Title:  Executive Director 
 

11



– 5 – 
COMMISSION/MINUTES/1-21-2020 

       Meeting Reconvened to 
Open Session 

The meeting reconvened to open session at 
10:17 a.m., with all Commissioners present. 

      Closed Session Report No reportable action taken on the presented 
item. 

 

10.   COMMISSIONER  
  COMMENTS 
 

There were no comments. 
 

11.   ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 

 
_____________________________ 

Ray Adams, President 
 
 

_____________________________
Date 

There being no further business, the meeting 
was adjourned at 10:17 a.m. 

 
 
 

____________________________ 
Vartan Gharpetian, Secretary 

 
 

____________________________ 
Date 

 

12



5.c.1)

13

twilliams
Typewritten Text
[To be signed]



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



5.c.2)

36

twilliams
Typewritten Text
[To be signed]



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



 
 

 
STAFF REPORT\COMMISSION\2-3-2020\RESOLUTION NO. 485 
ADOPTING THE 2020 AUTHORITY INVESTMENT POLICY 

STAFF REPORT PRESENTED TO THE 
BURBANK-GLENDALE-PASADENA AIRPORT AUTHORITY 

FEBRUARY 3, 2020 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 485 ADOPTING  
THE 2020 AUTHORITY INVESTMENT POLICY 

 
 

SUMMARY 

Formerly mandated by State law and now currently recommended under Sections 
53646(a)(2) and 53646(h) of the California Government Code (“Code”), the Commission 
annually reviews and approves an investment policy to identify policies and procedures for 
the prudent and systematic investment to be followed by the Authority Treasurer in the 
exercise of the investment authority delegated to him/her.   
 
The Authority’s Investment Manager, Columbia Management Investment Advisors LLC 
(“CMIA”), has opined that the 2019 Authority Investment Policy, with overall investment 
criteria of capital preservation (safety) and liquidity, is still appropriate and conservative, and 
does not need revisions at this time.  Staff concurs with the CMIA recommendation and 
seeks a Finance and Administration Committee recommendation to the Commission that it 
adopt the attached proposed Resolution No. 485 approving the 2020 Authority Investment 
Policy (Attachment 1).   
 
At its January 21, 2020, meeting of the Finance and Administration Committee 
(“Committee”), the Committee voted unanimously (3–0) to recommend that the Commission 
adopt the attached Resolution No. 485 approving the 2020 Authority Investment Policy. 
 

DISCUSSION 

The Authority was previously required by Section 53646 of the Code to annually review and 
adopt an investment policy for its restricted and non-restricted cash portfolios.  The 
Legislature amended this statute to make annual investment policy review optional for local 
agencies and to declare that no liability is incurred for failure to annually adopt an 
investment policy.  However, the Legislature strongly recommends and the Authority 
believes it is prudent to continue to annually review and adopt an investment policy.  The 
Authority further requires that CMIA abide by that policy as it makes decisions regarding 
changes to the Authority’s investments.  The Authority’s investment policy dictates the type 
of investment vehicles that are permitted, and maximum allowable percentage of individual 
sectors that the Authority can invest in. 
 
For local governments, including the Authority, State law (Code Section 53600 et seq.) sets 
forth the types of allowable investments, maximum maturities, maximum concentration of 
investments by type of investment and issuer, minimum ratings for certain types of 
investments, and how the investments may be held.  
 
The Authority’s investment policy further limits all investments to be more restrictive than the 
Code.  The restrictions in the Code and the additional limitations in the Authority’s 
investment policy mitigate the Authority’s interest rate risk, credit risk, concentration of credit 
risk, and custodial credit risk related to its various investments. 
 

5.d.

59



 
 
STAFF REPORT\COMMISSION\2-3-2020\RESOLUTION NO. 485 
ADOPTING THE 2020 AUTHORITY INVESTMENT POLICY 

-2-

CMIA continues to diligently review and report on the Authority’s investments in this 
challenging economic environment.  The Authority has historically favored holding its 
investments until they mature.  CMIA will continue to bring recommendations to the 
Commission on individual investments and/or the policy as conditions warrant throughout 
the year.   
 
Staff and CMIA will discuss the 2020 Investment Policy with the Commission.    
 
RECOMMENDATION 

At its January 21, 2020, meeting of the Finance and Administration Committee 
(“Committee”), the Committee voted unanimously (3–0) to recommend that the Commission 
adopt the attached Resolution No. 485 approving the 2020 Authority Investment Policy. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

60



 
 
 
COMMISSION\2‐3‐2020\2020 AUTHORITY INVESTMENT POLICY 
 

Attachment 1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 485 

A RESOLUTION OF THE  
BURBANK-GLENDALE-PASADENA AIRPORT AUTHORITY COMMISSION 

ADOPTING THE 2020 AUTHORITY INVESTMENT POLICY 

The Burbank-Glendale-Pasadena Airport Authority Commission finds, resolves and 
determines as follows: 

Section 1. Recitals. 

A. Government Code Section 53646 authorizes, but no longer 
requires, local agencies to review and approve an investment policy on an annual basis.   

B. The Burbank-Glendale-Pasadena Airport Authority (“Authority”) has 
a fiduciary responsibility to maximize the use of public funds entrusted to its care, manage those 
funds wisely and prudently, and protect those funds from financial catastrophes. 

C. The objective and purpose of the Authority’s investment program is 
to maintain a level of investment as near 100% as possible, with due consideration given to such 
factors as safety, liquidity, yield, and cash flow requirements. 

D. The Commission desires to continue its existing policy to review 
and approve an investment policy on an annual basis. 

E. The Commission desires to continue its existing investment policy 
with no changes. 

Section 2. 2020 Investment Policy.  The Commission hereby adopts the 2020 
Investment Policy attached hereto as Exhibit A. Such policy supersedes all prior investment 
policies adopted by the Commission. 

Section 3. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall be effective upon adoption.  

Adopted this ___ day of February 2020. 

 
 

  
Ray Adams, President 

Attest:  
 

  
Vartan Gharpetian, Secretary 
 

61



‐1‐ 
COMMISSION\2‐3‐2020 
2020 AUTHORITY INVESTMENT POLICY 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

2020 INVESTMENT POLICY 
 

BURBANK-GLENDALE-PASADENA AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
 
 
This document identifies policies and procedures for the prudent and systematic investment 
policy to be followed by the Burbank-Glendale-Pasadena Airport Authority Treasurer in the 
exercise of the investment authority delegated to him/her.  All of these policies and procedures 
are within the statutory guidelines provided for in State law. 

The Investment Policy must be renewed annually.  The Treasurer must present it in draft form to 
the Finance and Administration Committee for its review and approval prior to presentation to 
the Authority for its approval. 

INVESTMENT MANAGER 

The Treasurer may utilize an Investment Manager in the investment management of the 
Authority’s portfolio(s).  The Investment Manager shall comply with the investment restrictions 
contained in Sections 53601, 53601.1, 53601.5 and 53601.6 of the California Government Code 
(“Government Code Provisions”) and this Investment Policy.  In the event the Investment Policy 
is more restrictive than the Government Code Provisions, the Investment Policy shall control.  
Further, the Investment Manager shall periodically, but no less than annually, advise the 
Treasurer and the Authority on recommended changes to the Investment Policy, including any 
required to bring the policy into compliance with the Government Code Provisions.   

BASIC POLICY AND OBJECTIVES 

Three fundamental criteria shall be followed in the investment program (all investments and 
deposits).  In order of importance they are: 

1. SAFETY.  Investments shall be made in a manner that seeks to ensure the preservation 
of principal and interest.  The Treasurer will evaluate, or have evaluated each 
investment, seeking quality in issuer and in the underlying security or collateral.  He/she 
will also diversify the portfolio to reduce loss exposure.  In the investment of idle cash, 
the prudent man rule shall be followed.  This rule states in essence, that when investing 
property for the benefit of another, a trustee shall exercise the judgment and care, under 
the circumstances then prevailing, which persons of prudence, discretion and 
intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs, not for speculation, but for 
investment, considering the probable safety of their capital as well as the probable 
income to be derived. The Treasurer will remain within the policy maximums regarding 
asset allocation and maturity guidelines identified on Exhibit A. 

2. LIQUIDITY.  To the extent possible, investments will be made whose maturities are 
compatible with cash flow and will allow for easy and rapid conversion into cash without 
any loss of value.  The Treasurer’s monthly report to the Authority is to include a 
comparison of the actual portfolio to the policy maximums shown on Exhibit A. 

3. YIELD.  An acceptable rate of return on investments is desirable, but only after first 
considering safety of principal and liquidity. 

62



‐2‐ 
COMMISSION\2‐3‐2020 
2020 AUTHORITY INVESTMENT POLICY 
 

TYPES OF INVESTMENTS 

1. U.S. Treasuries.  These are investments in direct obligations of the U. S. Treasury. 
2. U.S. Agencies.  These are obligations of the Federal Home Loan Bank, Federal National 

Mortgage Association, Federal Farm Credit Bank, etc. 
3. Time Deposits.  Time deposits are to be placed in accordance with the California 

Government Code, in those banks and savings and loan associations which meet the 
requirements.  Deposits must be either insured or secured by Government securities 
with a market value of at least 10% in excess of the total amount deposited or real estate 
mortgages with a value of at least 150% of the total amount deposited.  The latest 
available quarterly financial statements will be evaluated to determine whether an 
institution meets all the capital levels required by the Financial Institutions Reform, 
Recovery and Enforcement Act of 1989 (FIRREA), which are also required by the 
Investment Manager prior to placing deposits. 

4. Local Agency Investment Funds.  This is a pool of funds managed by the State 
Treasurer’s Office and includes only investments that meet the legal requirements. 

5. Bankers Acceptances.  Only those bankers acceptances eligible for purchase by the 
Federal Reserve System meet eligibility requirements. 

6. Commercial Paper.  Only commercial paper of prime quality of the highest ranking or of 
the highest letter and numerical rating as provided by Moody’s Investors Service or 
Standard and Poor’s may be purchased (A-1/P-1).  To be eligible for purchase, 
commercial paper may not exceed 270 days maturity nor represent more than 10% of 
the outstanding paper of an issuing corporation.  Purchases of commercial paper may 
not exceed 15% of each agency’s surplus money which may be invested. 

7. Repurchase Agreements.  These are a purchase of securities (any of the investments 
authorized under the Government Code) pursuant to an agreement by which the seller 
will repurchase such securities on or before a specified date, or on demand of either 
party, and for a specified amount. 

8. Money Market Funds.  Funds will consist of U.S. Treasury securities only. 
9. Corporate Medium Term Notes.  The Corporate Notes must be issued by corporations 

organized and operating within the United States or by depository institutions licensed by 
the United States or any state and operating within the United States that are rated A or 
better by a nationally recognized rating service (Government Code Section 53601(j)).  
Purchase requires approval of the Authority Director of Financial Services and the 
Treasurer. 

10. Negotiable Certificates of Deposit.  These are negotiable investments evidencing a time 
deposit made with a bank at a fixed rate of interest for a fixed period of time.  These 
investments are liquid and are traded in the market place.  The long-term rating of the 
issuing institution must be A or higher. 

In the event a security is downgraded below the minimum authorized rating, the Investment 
Manager will notify the Airport Authority of the downgrade with a recommendation on the 
disposition of the security.  The Airport Authority will provide written instructions to the 
Investment Manager regarding the disposition of a security that is below the minimum 
acceptable rating. 

MATURITY LIMITATIONS 

The Authority’s weighted average maturity goal during any calendar year will be established 
based on the recommendations of the Investment Manager and may be reviewed and adjusted 
at any time based on the recommendations of the Investment Manager. 

63



‐3‐ 
COMMISSION\2‐3‐2020 
2020 AUTHORITY INVESTMENT POLICY 
 

For purposes of this policy, the “A” category will include Standard & Poor’s ratings of “A+”, “A” 
and “A-“; Moody’s Investor Services ratings of “A1”, “A2” and “A3”; and Fitch Ratings of “A+”, “A” 
and “A-“. 

PURCHASE OF SECURITIES/DEPOSITS 

Transactions shall be made with reputable banks and brokers who are experienced, 
knowledgeable and offer service.  Before placing deposits, comparisons of at least three eligible 
financial institutions shall be obtained.  The brokers approved by the Investment Manager 
(Columbia Management Investment Advisors LLC) will be utilized. 

PAYMENT FOR SECURITIES AND SAFEKEEPING 

All securities purchased shall be delivered against payment (DVP), and held in safekeeping as 
evidenced by safekeeping receipts. 

PORTFOLIO DIVERSIFICATION 

To maintain a diversified portfolio, a maximum percentage limitation has been set for each type 
of investment.  If an investment percentage-of-portfolio limitation were to be exceeded due to an 
incident, such as fluctuation in portfolio size, the affected investments may be held to maturity to 
avoid losses or if no loss is indicated, the Treasurer may reconstruct the portfolio if in his/her 
judgment it appears prudent, taking into consideration the expected length of time to bring the 
portfolio back into balance. 

INVESTMENT RESOURCES 

Information concerning investment opportunities and market developments will be gained by 
maintaining contact with the financial community and the media. 

CASH MANAGEMENT 

Cash will be invested as close to 100% of collected funds as possible taking into consideration 
cash flow information given to the Treasurer. 

REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 

The Treasurer shall annually submit to the Airport Authority a statement of investment policy. 

The Treasurer shall submit a monthly report, that meets all Government Code requirements, to 
the Airport Authority showing the type of all investments, including any made and maturing 
between monthly reports, showing institution, date of maturity, amount of deposit or cost of 
security, current market value of all securities with a maturity of more than 12 months, rate of 
interest, statement relating the report to the Statement of Investment Policy, statement that 
there are sufficient funds to meet the next six months obligations, and such data as may be 
required by the Airport Authority. 
 
INTERNAL CONTROLS 

A system of internal controls shall be established and documented in writing.  The controls shall 
be designed to prevent losses of public funds arising from fraud, employee error, 
misrepresentation of third parties, unanticipated changes in financial markets, or imprudent 
actions by employees and officers of the Government Agency. 

64



 
  

‐4‐ 
COMMISSION\2‐3‐2020 
2020 AUTHORITY INVESTMENT POLICY 

EXHIBIT A 
PORTFOLIO GUIDELINES 

 
 

 
INVESTMENTS 

 
 MAXIMUM AMOUNT  

 
MAXIMUM MATURITY  

      

U.S. Agency Securities 70% 5 YEARS 

Corporate Term Notes  30% (note 1) 5 YEARS 

Local Agency Investment Fund $20 MILLION  N/A 

Bankers Acceptances 15% (note 1) 6 MONTHS 

Non-Negotiable Certificates Of 
Deposit  

15% (note 1) 5 YEARS 

Negotiable Certificates Of 
Deposit 

15% (note 1) 5 YEARS 

Commercial Paper  15% (note 1) 9 MONTHS 

Repurchase Agreements 10% 1 YEAR 

Money Market Funds (note 2) 15% N/A 

U.S. Treasury Securities  NO LIMIT 5 YEARS 

  
Footnotes:  (1) Maximum amount of any one issuer is 5%.  

 (2) U.S. Treasury obligations only.   
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

65



 

 
 
STAFF REPORT\COMMISSION\2‐3‐2020 
FIRST AMENDMENT TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
PERFORMANCE TERM EXTENSION ‐ GARVER, LLC 

STAFF REPORT PRESENTED TO THE 
BURBANK-GLENDALE-PASADENA AIRPORT AUTHORITY 

FEBRUARY 3, 2020 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
PERFORMANCE TERM EXTENSION 

GARVER, LLC 
 
 

SUMMARY 

Staff seeks to extend Garver, LLC (Garver) Professional Services Agreement (PSA) for an 
additional six months to June 30, 2020. Staff seeks the additional time to complete the 
implementation of the Safety Management System (SMS). 
 
BACKGROUND 

Garver, LLC is a consultant in good standing and initially entered into a Professional 
Services Agreement with the Authority effective February 1, 2018, through January 31, 
2020, for consulting services relating to the analysis, development and implementation of an 
Airport SMS Manual that meets the requirements of 14 CFR Part 139. 
 
Staff wishes to extend its performance term to June 30, 2020, to complete its SMS Services 
per the Professional Services Agreement. 
 
REVENUE IMPACT 

The proposed First Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement is revenue neutral 
to the Authority. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 

Staff seeks Commission approval for a First Amendment to the Garver, LLC SMS PSA 
agreement and authorize the Authority President to execute the same. 
 
 
  

5.e.

66



 

- 1 of 2 - 
2374731.1 

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO  

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

(Burbank-Glendale-Pasadena Airport Authority / Garver, LLC) 

 

THIS AMENDMENT NO. 1 (“First Amendment”) to the February 1, 2018 Professional 

Services Agreement (“Agreement”) executed by the Burbank-Glendale-Pasadena Airport 

Authority (“Authority”), a California joint powers agency, and Garver, LLC, an Arkansas 

limited liability company (“Consultant”), is dated January 21, 2020 for reference purposes. 

 

R E C I T A L S 

 

A. The parties executed the Agreement to provide for the Authority’s retention of  

Consultant as an independent contractor to provide the following professional services:  airport 

safety management system consulting services. 

 

B. The parties desire to extend the term. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

 

1. Amendment of Section 1.  Paragraph (D) of Section 1 (“Definitions”) of the 

Agreement is amended to read as follows: 

 

“D. ‘Expiration Date’:  June 30, 2020.” 

 

2. Preservation of Agreement.  Except as expressly modified by this First Amendment, 

all of the provisions of the Agreement shall remain unaltered and in full force and effect.  In 

the event of a conflict between the provisions of this First Amendment and the provisions of 

the Agreement, the provisions of this First Amendment shall control. 

 

 

 

 

 

[SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE] 

 

  

67



 

- 2 of 2 - 
2374731.1 

TO EXECUTE THIS FIRST AMENDMENT, the parties have caused their duly authorized 

representatives to sign below. 

Garver, LLC  

 

      

___________________________________ ___________________________________ 

Manager     Manager 

 
[Pursuant to California Corporations Code Section 17703.01(d), both signature lines must be executed unless the 

articles of incorporation state that the firm is managed by only one manager.] 
 

 

 

Burbank-Glendale-Pasadena Airport Authority      

    

   

___________________________________ 

Ray Adams, President 

 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

 

___________________________________  

Richards, Watson & Gershon     

A Professional Corporation 

68

TEOKrongley
TEO'Krongley Signature



 

 
 
STAFF REPORT\COMMISSION\2‐3‐2020 
REQUEST TO SUPPORT PLEDGE  
AGAINST HUMAN TRAFFICKING  

STAFF REPORT PRESENTED TO THE 
BURBANK-GLENDALE-PASADENA AIRPORT AUTHORITY 

FEBRUARY 3, 2020 
 

REQUEST TO SUPPORT PLEDGE 
AGAINST HUMAN TRAFFICKING 

 
 
SUMMARY 

The Federal Aviation Administration, on behalf of the U.S. Department of Transportation 
(“Department”), is seeking support to execute a voluntary pledge against human trafficking. 
 
BACKGROUND 

Similar to the efforts the Commission has already undertaken with the Los Angeles County 
District Attorney’s Office, the Department is calling upon all transportation leaders to commit 
and support its effort to educate employees to recognize and report signs of human 
trafficking, raise the traveling public’s awareness of this issue through outreach and sharing 
key data with the Department with the goal across the transportation sector to eliminate 
human trafficking. 
 
A copy of the voluntary pledge is attached. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 

The voluntary pledge against human trafficking is similar to the efforts that have been 
undertaken at Hollywood Burbank Airport.  Staff seeks Commission approval to support the 
voluntary pledge proposed by U.S. Department of Transportation and to authorize the 
Executive Director to execute the same. 
 
 

 
 
  

5.f.

69



We pledge with one voice as national leaders to join with partners across the 
transportation industry to work together and end human trafficking by: 

* Educating our employees and organizational members on how to 
recognize and report signs of human trafficking

* Raising awareness among the traveling public on human trafficking issues by utilizing 
common messaging in targeted outreach campaigns 

* Measuring our collective impact on human t* Measuring our collective impact on human trafficking by tracking and sharing key data points 

By uniting our efforts across the transportation sector, we will see greater progress 
in reaching our ultimate goal of eliminating human trafficking. 

The U.S. Department of Transportation's Transportation Leaders Against Human Trafficking initiative 
calls on all transportation industry leaders to join us in our commitment to employee education, 
raising public awareness, and measuring our collective impact by signing this voluntary pledge. 

70



 
 

 
 
STAFF REPORT\COMMISSION\2-3-2020 
APPROVAL OF AMENDMENT NO. 2 
TO SITA AIRPORT SOLUTION LINE SERVICE AGREEMENT  
FOR GATE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 

STAFF REPORT PRESENTED TO THE 
BURBANK-GLENDALE-PASADENA AIRPORT AUTHORITY 

FEBRUARY 3, 2020 
 

APPROVAL OF AMENDMENT NO. 2 
TO SITA AIRPORT SOLUTION LINE SERVICE AGREEMENT  

FOR GATE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 
 
 
SUMMARY 

At its January 21, 2020, meeting of the Operations and Development Committee (“Committee”), 
the Committee voted unanimously (3–0) to recommend the Commission approve a proposed 
Amendment No. 2 (“Amendment”) to SITA (or Société Internationale de Télécommunications 
Aéronautiques) Airport Solution Line Service Agreement (“Agreement”), copy attached, in a not-
to-exceed amount of $469,677 for a Gate Management System. 
 
BACKGROUND 

In order to improve safety margins for aircraft and otherwise improve utilization of the Airport’s 
14 gates, Staff initiated a procurement for a comprehensive gate management system to 
replace the current manual system.  To ensure efficient implementation, this procurement 
focused on gate management systems that are in use at other facilities and that are familiar to 
the airlines serving the Airport. 
 
A robust real-time gate management system will include a planning module that assists Staff 
with ensuring airline schedules and proper gate assignments are coordinated.  The planning 
function will provide the airlines and Staff the ability to determine the most appropriate time slot 
and gate availability to aircraft type based on the joint use policy for gate assignments.  
 
To assist with the evaluation of the various gate management systems, Staff engaged the 
consulting services of Faith Group, LLC (“Faith Group”), a leading consultant on airport facility 
technology.  Faith Group’s scope of work included validation of the requirements for a system 
applicable to the Airport, identification of valid vendors, and advising on selection methodology.  
Faith Group’s approach to appropriate vendor selection included benchmarking four large hub 
facilities utilizing a gate management software system. Those facilities may not seem to be a 
comparable benchmark for the Airport.  However, most airport operators do not manage their 
gates, and instead an individual airline or an airline consortium are granted that responsibility.  
Staff believes that the information gathered by Faith Group is relevant to the 14-gate operation 
at the Airport.  
 
The following four airports were used for the benchmarking:  
 
Denver International Airport (DEN)  
Newark International Airport (EWR)  
Orlando International Airport (MCO)  
San Francisco International Airport (SFO) 
 
Faith Group conducted telephone interviews to identify these facilities’ best practices and 
lessons learned with respect to gate management system implementation. 

6.a.

71



 
STAFF REPORT\COMMISSION\2-3-2020 
APPROVAL OF AMENDMENT NO. 2 
TO SITA AIRPORT SOLUTION LINE SERVICE AGREEMENT  
FOR GATE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 
 

-2-

SELECTION 

With the information gathered, Staff solicited proposals from gate management system 
providers. Proposals were received from four firms:  Indmex/GCR, INFORM, SITA, and  Veovo.  
All of these proposers are qualified and have systems in place at various airports around the 
world.  The airlines serving the Airport are familiar with these entities and their products. 
 
Each proposer was required to provide a total inclusive cost for the gate management system 
and monthly maintenance services for a period of sixty months.  The results from each proposer 
are as follows: 
  
1. Indmex/GCR - is $649,545 
2. INFORM - $1,007,469 
3. SITA - $469,677  
4. Veovo - $1,151,772  
 
Based on the price results, SITA and Indmex/GCR were invited to participate in an interview 
with Staff and a Faith Group representative. 
 
The SITA platform, which the airlines serving the Airport are familiar with and utilize at other 
airports, is the most cost effective and is a proven commercial “off the shelf product” that does 
not require intensive customization. This will allow the Authority to install and implement the 
system in a “plug and play” fashion. Further, SITA was contracted by the Authority to install, 
operate and maintain the Common Use Passenger Processing System (“CUPPS”) in 2012.  
Those services expired on September 30, 2015, following a new Agreement with SITA for 
CUPPS operation and maintenance services, effective October 1, 2015, through September 30, 
2019.  Amendment No. 1 extended the term of the Agreement to September 30, 2020, with two 
optional one-year renewals.  The proposed Amendment No. 2, for a not-to-exceed amount of 
$469,677, provides for an upfront capital cost of $310,797 and a monthly maintenance services 
fee of $2,648 for the term of sixty months.   SITA’s on-site maintenance and technical support 
staff for the CUPPS will also support the proposed gate management system.          
 
BUDGET IMPACT 
 
The adopted FY 2020 budget contains a $215,000 appropriation for a gate management 
system. Staff recommends that the Authority provide the funding for the additional $95,797 in 
capital cost and negotiate with the airlines a cost recovery for the entire acquisition.  The cost of 
the monthly maintenance will be charged to the airlines on a monthly basis. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 

At its January 21, 2020, meeting of the Operations and Development Committee (“Committee”), 
the Committee voted unanimously (3–0) to recommend that the Commission approve the 
proposed Amendment to the Agreement in a not-to-exceed amount of $469,677 for a Gate 
Management System.   
 
 
 

72



 

 
 
STAFF REPORT\COMMISSION\2‐3‐2020  
AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR 
LANDSIDE PAVING REHABILITATION 
PROJECT NUMBER E19‐14 

STAFF REPORT PRESENTED TO THE 
BURBANK-GLENDALE-PASADENA AIRPORT AUTHORITY 

FEBRUARY 3, 2020 
 

AWARD OF CONTRACT 
FOR 

LANDSIDE PAVING REHABILITATION 
PROJECT NUMBER E19-14 

 
 

SUMMARY 

At its January 21, 2020, meeting of the Operations and Development Committee 
(“Committee”), the Committee voted unanimously to recommend that the Commission: 

 Award a contract for Landside Paving Rehabilitation in the amount of $141,417 to 
PaveWest Inc.; 

 Authorize a project budget for construction management, administration and quality 
assurance testing services for a not-to-exceed amount of $15,000; and 

 Authorize a project aggregate contingency of $15,000 for unforeseen circumstances  
      that may arise during construction. 
 

BACKGROUND 

The pavements within the airport property limits are inspected annually to determine their 
condition and facilitate planning for pavement rehabilitation or replacement work.  In addition 
to the annual inspections, the condition of landside pavement is evaluated by Maintenance, 
Operations and Engineering Staff as part of their respective daily inspection routine to 
determine if intermediate repair work is necessary to increase the useful life of the 
pavement.  If the daily or annual inspections determine local repairs will no longer be 
effective in extending the useful life, specific pavement areas are recommended for 
rehabilitation.  The pavement in the two areas described below, which were last rehabilitated 
in 2007 and 2011, have reached a point where continued spot repairs will no longer be 
effective to extend the life of the pavement.  As such, these areas were incorporated into the 
work programmed for FY 2020 Landside Pavement Replacement project. 
 
PROJECT DETAILS 

The scope of work includes removing the existing asphalt in two separate locations and 
replacing it with new asphalt.  There are also areas adjacent to the removals that would 
benefit from a crackfill and sealcoat as a part of the project.  These locations are Avenue A 
at Thornton and continuing along the east concourse, as well as the exit lanes at Thornton 
along Avenue A.  The total area of asphalt to be replaced is approximately 15,000 square 
feet and the overall area of crackfill and sealcoat is approximately 28,000 square feet. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6.b.

73



 
STAFF REPORT\COMMISSION\2‐3‐2020                                                                                                                        
AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR 
LANDSIDE PAVING REHABILITATION 
PROJECT NUMBER E19‐14 

-2-

PROCUREMENT 
 
Staff publicly solicited bids on the Authority’s PlanetBids e-procurement website with five 
responses received.  The responses were as follows: 
 

CONTRACTOR BID 

EC Construction $149,815 

Excel Paving $148,800 

PaveWest $141,417 

Sully-Miller $240,000 

Superior Paving $257,240 

 
Staff reviewed the bids and determined that all bids were responsive with the low bidder  
being PaveWest at $141,417.  The low bidder has not recently performed work  
at Hollywood Burbank Airport, but its references were checked and are satisfactory. 
 
SCHEDULE 

The work will be scheduled to begin as soon as possible after the award and execution of  
the contract.  The work is scheduled to be completed within 30 calendar days after a notice  
to proceed is issued to the contractor. 
 
OPERATIONS IMPACTS 

All work will be performed at night with the work phased and coordinated with Operations 
and Ground Access Staff to minimize any impacts to the Airport.   
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 

Staff has reviewed the California Environmental Quality Act guidelines regarding exemptions 
applicable to this project and determined that this project is exempt pursuant to the Class 1 
categorical exemption (14 C.C.R 15301).  Among other things, that exemption covers 
rehabilitation of deteriorated facilities to meet current standards of public health and safety in 
situations where damage is not substantial and has not resulted from an environmental 
hazard. 
 
FUNDING 

Funding for this project is included in the adopted FY 2020 Budget for Landside Paving 
Replacement in the amount of $310,000.  A breakdown of the proposed project budget is as 
follows:  
 
Planning and Design (completed in-house)                                                       $    5,000 
Construction 141,417 
Construction Management and Testing 15,000 
Project Aggregate Contingency 15,000 
 
Total $176,417 

 

74



 
STAFF REPORT\COMMISSION\2‐3‐2020                                                                                                                        
AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR 
LANDSIDE PAVING REHABILITATION 
PROJECT NUMBER E19‐14 

-3-

FUNDING (Cont’d) 

The adopted FY 2020 budget of $310,000 included pavement rehabilitation work near the 
intersection of Hollywood Way and Winona Avenue and pavement rehabilitation work on 
Avenue B.  During design development for these areas, it was determined that there is 
limited value in undertaking rehabilitation work in these areas due to anticipated future 
projects related to the Replacement Passenger Terminal project that will result in substantial 
reconfiguration and changes in use of the area.  Rehabilitation work undertaken in this fiscal 
year will not maximize the useful life of such work and was therefore eliminated from the 
scope of the project. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 

At its January 21, 2020, meeting of the Operations and Development Committee 
(“Committee”), the Committee voted unanimously to recommend that the Commission 
approve the following; (i) award of a contract for Landside Paving Rehabilitation in the 
amount of $141,417 to PaveWest; (ii) a $15,000 project budget for construction 
management, administration and quality assurance testing services; and (iii) a $15,000 
project contingency for unforeseen circumstances.  
 

 
 
  

75



76



77



 

 
 
STAFF REPORT\COMMISSION\2‐3‐2020 
RIGHT OF ENTRY AND ACCESS AGREEMENT 
WITH BURBANK INDUSTRIAL INVESTORS, LP 

STAFF REPORT PRESENTED TO THE 
BURBANK-GLENDALE-PASADENA AIRPORT AUTHORITY 

 FEBRUARY 3, 2020 
 

RIGHT OF ENTRY AND ACCESS AGREEMENT 
WITH BURBANK INDUSTRIAL INVESTORS, LP 

 
 

SUMMARY 

At its January 21, 2020, meeting of the Legal, Government and Environmental Affairs 
Committee (“Committee”), the Committee voted unanimously (3–0) to recommend that the 
Commission approve a proposed Right of Entry and Access Agreement (“Agreement”) with 
Burbank Industrial Investors, LP (“BII”), copy attached, to facilitate limited grading and 
drainage work on the Adjacent Property to protect the Avion Burbank site.  
 
BACKGROUND 

BII, through Overton Moore Properties, is now constructing the Avion Burbank development 
on the former Trust Property north of Lot A and east of the Adjacent Property.  As a 
condition of the City of Burbank’s development approvals and permits, BII is responsible for 
addressing pre-development storm water drainage.  Due to the current topographical 
condition of the area, some storm water that falls on the Adjacent Property flows to the east 
and crosses the property line onto the Avion Burbank site. 
 
BII’s original grading design for the Avion Burbank site included a drainage channel at the 
property line to collect storm water from the Adjacent Property and direct it to a storm water 
collection system.  In preliminary discussions with BII, Staff indicated that, if the 
Replacement Passenger Terminal is constructed on the Adjacent Property (the preferred 
site), then that development will essentially eliminate existing surface water flows and 
thereby effectively eliminate the need for a drainage collection channel.  Additionally, Staff 
expressed concerns that a drainage channel located immediately next to the Airport could 
create a potential security issue.  In response to these concerns, BII prepared a new 
stormwater drainage plan for the Avion Burbank site.  The new plan contemplates limited 
grading and installation of a perforated drainage collection pipe on the Adjacent Property 
and does not include a permanent drainage channel on the Avion Burbank site. 
 
DETAILS 

The proposed Agreement will give BII and its designees access to the Adjacent Property for 
approximately two months (until March 31, 2020).  BII’s scope of work under the Agreement 
includes installation of compacted berm, a perforated pipe wrapped with filter fabric which 
would be surrounded by stone aggregate along the eastern edge of the Adjacent Property.  
Storm water collected in the perforated pipe would be directed to an existing storm drainage 
system in Parking Lot A.  BII’s engineer is currently finalizing hydrology calculations and 
details which will be subject to both City of Burbank approval and Authority approval prior to 
initiation of any work on the Adjacent Property. 
   
Work undertaken by BII and its designees on the Adjacent Property will be overseen by a 
representative of the Authority’s Engineering Department as necessary. 
 

6.c.

78



 
 
 
STAFF REPORT\COMMISSION\2‐3‐2020  
RIGHT OF ENTRY AND ACCESS AGREEMENT 
WITH BURBANK INDUSTRIAL INVESTORS, LP 
 

-2-

COST 

BII will be responsible for all costs associated with the surveying, grading, and pipe 
installation on the Adjacent Property. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 

At its January 21, 2020, meeting of the Legal, Government and Environmental Affairs 
Committee (“Committee”), the Committee voted unanimously (3–0) to recommend that the 
Commission approve the proposed Agreement with BII to facilitate limited grading and 
drainage work to protect the Avion Burbank site. 
 

 
 
  

79



 

80



81



82



83



84



Southwest Quadrant Terminal Selection Memo 
Exhibit A  

Adjacent Property Legal Description 

1. PARCEL “A SOUTH”.

PARCEL “A SOUTH” BEING THAT PORTION OF PARCEL “A” AS SHOWN ON MAP 
OF RECORD OF SURVEY, IN THE CITY OF BURBANK, COUNTY OF LOS 
ANGELES, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, FILED IN BOOK 113 PAGES 90 AND 91 OF 
RECORDS OF SURVEY IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY RECORDER OF SAID 
COUNTY, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF FRACTIONAL 
SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 1 NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST, SAN BERNARDINO 
MERIDIAN, IN THE CITY OF BURBANK, COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES, STATE OF 
CALIFORNIA, ACCORDING TO THE OFFICIAL PLAT OF SAID LAND. 

EXCEPTING THE EASTERLY 50 FEET OF SAID LAND. 

ALSO EXCEPTING THAT PORTION OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE 
NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 4, LYING NORTHERLY OF A LINE 
PARALLEL WITH AND DISTANT NORTHERLY 750.00 FEET MEASURED AT RIGHT 
ANGLES FROM THE CENTERLINE OF THE EAST-WEST RUNWAY OF THE 
BURBANK-GLENDALE-PASADENA AIRPORT, SAID CENTERLINE BEING 
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

BEGINNING AT THE INTERSECTION OF HOLLYWOOD WAY (100.00 FEET WIDE) 
WITH THE CENTERLINE OF WINONA AVENUE, BEING THE SOUTHEAST CORNER 
OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 4; 
THENCE ALONG SAID CENTERLINE OF HOLLYWOOD WAY, SOUTH 100’ 12” 
WEST 621.13 FEET TO ITS INTERSECTION WITH THE EASTERLY 
PROLONGATION OF THE CENTERLINE OF SAID RUNWAY; THENCE ALONG SAID 
PROLONGATION AND SAID CENTERLINE, NORTH 89° 03’ 06” WEST TO THE 
WESTERLY LINE OF SAID AIRPORT. 

2. PARCEL “E”.

PARCEL “E” AS SHOWN ON MAP OF RECORD OF SURVEY, IN THE CITY OF 
BURBANK, COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, FILED IN BOOK 
113 PAGES 90 AND 91 OF RECORDS OF SURVEY IN THE OFFICE OF THE 
COUNTY RECORDER OF SAID COUNTY, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: 

THAT PORTION OF LOT 3 IN THE NORTHWEST ONE-QUARTER OF FRACTIONAL 
SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 1 NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST, SAN BERNARDINO 

85



MERIDIAN, IN THE CITY OF BURBANK, COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES, STATE OF 
CALIFORNIA, ACCORDING TO THE OFFICIAL PLAT OF SAID LAND, LYING 
EASTERLY OF THAT CERTAIN COURSE IN THE GENERAL EASTERLY LINE OF 
THE BURBANK-GLENDALE-PASADENA AIRPORT DESCRIBED IN PARCEL 1 IN 
THAT DEED TO THE HOLLYWOOD-BURBANK AIRPORT AUTHORITY RECORDED 
ON JUNE 29, 1978 AS INSTRUMENT NO. 78-704352 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS IN 
THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY RECORDER OF SAID COUNTY, DESCRIBED AS 
HAVING A BEARING AND LENGTH OF “NORTH 12° 54’ 21” WEST 2897.71 FEET”. 

EXCEPT THE EASTERLY 330 FEET OF THE NORTHERLY 660 FEET THEREOF. 

3. PARCEL “H”.

PARCEL “H” AS SHOWN ON MAP OF RECORD OF SURVEY, IN THE CITY OF 
BURBANK, COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, FILED IN BOOK 
113 PAGES 90 AND 91 OF RECORDS OF SURVEY IN THE OFFICE OF THE 
COUNTY RECORDER OF SAID COUNTY, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: 

THE MOST SOUTHERLY 47 FEET OF THE NORTHERLY 660 FEET OF THE 
EASTERLY 330 FEET OF LOT 3 OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF FRACTIONAL 
SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 1 NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST, SAN BERNARDINO 
MERIDIAN, IN THE CITY OF BURBANK, COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES, STATE OF 
CALIFORNIA, ACCORDING TO THE OFFICIAL PLAT OF SAID LAND. 

4. PARCEL “D”.

PARCEL “D” AS SHOWN ON MAP OF RECORD OF SURVEY, IN THE CITY OF 
BURBANK, COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, FILED IN BOOK 
113 PAGES 90 AND 91 OF RECORDS OF SURVEY IN THE OFFICE OF THE 
COUNTY RECORDER OF SAID COUNTY, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS 
FOLLOWS: 

LOT “A” OF TRACT NO. 3008, IN THE CITY OF BURBANK, COUNTY OF LOS 
ANGELES, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, AS PER MAP RECORDED IN BOOK 34 PAGE 
71 OF MAPS, IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY RECORDER OF SAID COUNTY. 

EXCEPT THEREFROM THAT PORTION OF SAID LOT “A”, LYING WESTERLY OF 
THAT CERTAIN EASTERLY BOUNDARY LINE OF THE LAND DESCRIBED IN 
PARCEL 1 OF THE DEED TO THE CITY OF BURBANK, RECORDED ON JUNE 29, 
1978 AS INSTRUMENT NO. 78-704351, IN SAID OFFICE OF THE COUNTY 
RECORDER OF SAID COUNTY, SHOWN AS HAVING A BEARING AND LENGTH OF 
NORTH 12° 54’ 21” WEST 2897.71 FEET. 

ALSO EXCEPT THEREFROM THAT PORTION OF SAID LOT “A” OF TRACT NO. 
3008, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

86



BEGINNING AT THE INTERSECTION OF THE CENTERLINES OF HOLLYWOOD 
WAY (100.00 FEET WIDE) AND WINONA AVENUE (80.00 FEET WIDE); THENCE 
NORTH 89° 01’ 33” WEST 1610.28 FEET ALONG THE EASTERLY PROLONGATION 
OF THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF SAID LOT “A”, BEING THE CENTERLINE OF 
WINONA AVENUE, VACATED BY THE CITY OF BURBANK, BY RESOLUTION NO. 
1965 ON JUNE 18, 1941 AND NO. 1032 ON MARCH 26, 1929 AND FURTHER BEING 
THAT CERTAIN COURSE IN THE BOUNDARY OF THE PROPERTY CONVEYED TO 
THE BURBANK-GLENDALE-PASADENA AIRPORT AUTHORITY, FORMERLY 
KNOWN AS THE HOLLYWOOD-BURBANK AIRPORT AUTHORITY BY DEED 
RECORDED AS DOCUMENT NO. 78-704352 ON JUNE 29, 1978, IN THE OFFICE OF 
SAID COUNTY RECORDER, DESCRIBED IN SAID DEED AS BEING THE 
NORTHERLY LINE OF THE SOUTHEAST ONE QUARTER, SECTION 4, TOWNSHIP 
1 NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST, SAN BERNARDINO MERIDIAN, COUNTY OF LOS 
ANGELES, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, ACCORDING TO THE OFFICIAL PLAT 
THEREOF, TO THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE NORTH 89° 01’ 33” 
WEST 259.27 FEET TO THE WESTERLY TERMINUS OF SAID CERTAIN COURSE; 
THENCE CONTINUING ALONG THE BOUNDARY OF SAID AIRPORT AUTHORITY, 
NORTH 12° 54’ 21” WEST 432.61 FEET; THENCE PARALLEL WITH THE FIRST 
DESCRIBED COURSE IN SAID AIRPORT AUTHORITY BOUNDARY, SOUTH 89° 01’ 
33” EAST 363.05 FEET TO A LINE DRAWN AT RIGHT ANGLES TO SAID FIRST 
DESCRIBED COURSE THAT PASSES THROUGH SAID TRUE POINT OF 
BEGINNING; THENCE ALONG SAID LINE SOUTH 0° 58’ 27” WEST 419.98 FEET TO 
THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

87



88

ggevorgyan
Text Box
PENDING CITY OF BURBANK APPROVAL



REVENUE PASSENGERS 2019 2018 % Change 2019 2018 % Change

----------------------------------------- ------------- ------------- ------------- ------------- ------------- -------------

Signatory Airlines

-----------------------------------------

Alaska Airlines 44,690 51,397 -13.05% 605,303 631,608 -4.16%

American Airlines 35,875 12,641 183.80% 323,583 146,176 121.37%

Delta Airlines 29,085 13,992 107.87% 242,016 154,973 56.17%

JetBlue Airways 18,174 19,547 -7.02% 240,758 140,656 71.17%

Southwest Airlines 391,386 345,607 13.25% 4,157,782 3,845,596 8.12%

Spirit Airlines 7,582 0 N/A 73,090 0 N/A

United Airlines 27,728 21,970 26.21% 341,205 344,963 -1.09%

------------- ------------- ------------- ------------- ------------- -------------

Total Revenue Passengers 554,520 465,154 19.21% 5,983,737 5,263,972 13.67%

======== ======== ======== ======== ======== ========

Inbound (deplaned) 281,749 236,971 18.90% 2,996,242 2,637,838 13.59%

Outbound (enplaned) 272,771 228,183 19.54% 2,987,495 2,626,134 13.76%

AIRCRAFT OPERATIONS * 2019 2018 % Change 2019 2018 % Change

----------------------------------------- ------------- ------------- ------------- ------------- ------------- -------------

Air Carrier 5,438 4,963 9.57% 65,058 56,828 14.48%

Air Taxi 2,062 1,668 23.62% 22,734 19,359 17.43%

General Aviation 2,383 2,174 9.61% 32,004 31,495 1.62%

Military Itinerant 58 49 18.37% 553 718 -22.98%

Civil Local 1,636 1,423 14.97% 25,746 23,623 8.99%

Military Local 0 0 N/A 0 0 N/A

======== ======== ======== ======== ======== ========

Total Aircraft Operations 11,577 10,277 12.65% 146,095 132,023 10.66%

* Source:  FAA Tower Daily Airport Operations Count, adjusted to show Canadair Regional Jet-200 operations

as Air Carrier. Includes Hollywood Burbank Airport arrivals/departures only; excludes aircraft that enter local air space

but do not land or take off at Hollywood Burbank Airport.

December January - December

Hollywood Burbank Airport

-------------------------------------------------

December January - December

-------------------------------------------------

------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------------

7.c.

89



AIR CARGO (lbs.) 2019 2018 % Change 2019 2018 % Change

----------------------------------------- ------------- ------------- ------------- ------------- ------------- -------------

Signatory Airlines

-----------------------------------------

Alaska Airlines 216 426 -49.30% 8,709 11,052 -21.20%

American Airlines 0 0 N/A 213 0 N/A

Delta Airlines 0 0 N/A 150 0 N/A

JetBlue Airways

Southwest Airlines 135,125 145,814 -7.33% 1,896,509 2,035,378 -6.82%

Spirit Airlines

United Airlines 2,245 137 N/A 56,709 138,595 N/A

-----------------------------------------  

Other Scheduled Carriers

-----------------------------------------

Federal Express 4,131,466 3,984,132 3.70% 51,337,511 55,793,454 -7.99%

United Parcel Service 4,954,376 4,963,911 -0.19% 49,842,334 48,360,784 3.06%

-----------------------------------------

Charter/Contract Carriers

-----------------------------------------

AirNet Express 0 2,958 -100.00% 0 36,236 -100.00%

Ameriflight 273,591 254,292 7.59% 2,905,266 3,031,644 -4.17%

------------- ------------- ------------- ------------- ------------- -------------

Total Air Cargo 9,497,019 9,351,670 1.55% 106,047,401 109,407,143 -3.07%

======== ======== ======== ======== ======== ========

Inbound (deplaned) 4,877,011 4,395,460 10.96% 52,292,237 52,855,093 -1.06%

Outbound (enplaned) 4,620,008 4,956,210 -6.78% 53,755,164 56,552,050 -4.95%

MAIL  (lbs.) 2019 2018 % Change 2019 2018 % Change

----------------------------------------- ------------- ------------- ------------- ------------- ------------- -------------

United Parcel Service 0 0 N/A 0 0 N/A

------------- ------------- ------------- ------------- ------------- -------------

Total Mail 0 0 N/A 0 0 N/A

======== ======== ======== ======== ======== ========

Inbound (deplaned) 0 0 N/A 0 0 N/A

Outbound (enplaned) 0 0 N/A 0 0 N/A

Hollywood Burbank Airport

December January - December

------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------------

December January - December

------------------------------------------------- -------------------------------------------------

90



     Revenue Passengers Month YTD

December 2019 554,520 5,983,737

December 2018 465,154 5,263,972

% Change 19.21% 13.67%

     Aircraft Operations - MO Air Carrier Air Taxi Gen Aviation Military Total

December 2019 5,438 2,062 4,019 58 11,577

December 2018 4,963 1,668 3,597 49 10,277

% Change 9.57% 23.62% 11.73% 18.37% 12.65%

     Aircraft Operations - YTD Air Carrier Air Taxi Gen Aviation Military Total

Jan-Dec 2019 65,058 22,734 57,750 553 146,095

Jan-Dec 2018 56,828 19,359 55,118 718 132,023

% Change 14.48% 17.43% 4.78% -22.98% 10.66%

0

1,000,000

2,000,000

3,000,000

4,000,000

5,000,000

6,000,000

7,000,000

Month YTD

Revenue Passengers

December 2019

December 2018

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

14,000

Air Carrier Air Taxi Gen Aviation Military Total

Aircraft Operations - Month

December 2019

December 2018

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

140,000

160,000

Air Carrier Air Taxi Gen Aviation Military Total

Aircraft Operations - Year-to-Date

Jan-Dec 2019

Jan-Dec 2018

91




